
APPEAL REF: APP/E3715/W/23/3322013 

Coventry Stadium, Rugby Road, Coventry, CV8 3GJ 

Demolition of existing buildings and outline application (with matters of access, layout, 
scale and appearance included) for residential development (Use Class C3) including 
means of access into the site from Rugby Road, provision of open space and 
associated infrastructure and provision of sports pitch, erection of pavilion and 
formation of associated car park. 
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From: Nicky Boothroyd <                                              > 

Sent: 05 September 2023 13:00 

To: Mark Lemon <                                      > 

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Fw: Coventry  

  

Hi Mark  

Apologies I did speak with John Edy but as discussed my words have been spun to give a negative 

view, please see highlighted that isn’t from me and changes in bold to reflect my conversation. I also 

asked him to add this  

  

Belle Vue Speedway won their first British Speedway Premiership since 1993 - a moment the fans 

‘have waited 29 years for. Their goal is to retain the title in 2023 and to lead role the restructure of the 

sport, giving it the profile it deserves and also broaden its appeal to diverse groupings and 

communities in the local area with our neighbourhood networking team.  

  

Is this sufficient or do you need me to put it in an email for you to use. 

  

Regards Nicky  

  

Nicky Boothroyd 

Facility Contracts Manager 

Email | <                                              > 

Telephone | <                              > 

Address | C/o National Squash Centre & Regional Arena, Etihad Campus, Gate 13, Rowsley 

Street, Manchester M11 3FF 
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From: Mark Lemon <                                      > 

Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 12:03 PM 

To: Nicky Boothroyd <                                              > 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fw: Coventry 

  

Hi Nicky,  

  

Nice to catch up.  

As discussed, I received the below documentation from objections team for planning for Coventry 

Speedway Stadium for housing.  

The planners have released and plan to use the below statements which sounds it come from John 

Edie Not sure of his surname). Would you be so kind to have a read over and update on the current 

situation and relations of the NSS and Speedway please? 

  

Kind regards 

Mark 

  

PS They have a deadline of 5pm tonight. Apologises for the late notice. 

 

2.12 Desk-based research and consultation with operators in the sector confirms that the primary 

driver of this decline is unsustainable revenues streams due to declining audiences and fewer 

broadcasting deals. Consultation undertaken directly with Manchester City Council (MCC) on 7 

and 8 August 2023 about the one speedway facility in which there has been investment since 

2016 (in Manchester) reveals that the sequence of events that apply to this facility is as follows: 

3 In 2014/15, the Greyhound track operator wanted to sell the (combined greyhound and 

speedway) site for housing. This would have left the speedway club - Belle Vue Aces 

(BVA) homeless. 

  

3 BVA approached Manchester City Council and secured (from the Council’s Strategic 

Development Department) some MCC capital investment plus support to secure a bank 

loan which BVA was due to repay. 

  

3 The capital invested secured an upgraded speedway track with improved floodlighting, 

corporate hospitality boxes etc., and incorporated installation of a (under-sized) 3G pitch 

in the centre of the track. The complex opened in 2016. 

  

3 The original arrangement was that BVA would manage the track and the hospitality 
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(paying for a lease but retaining the income) and that MCC’s leisure operator (GLL) 

would manage (and retain the income from) the 3G pitch. 

  

  

3 Having taken over management of the newly developed venue in 2016, BVA went into 

administration in 2017 leaving the City with liability for the bank loan taken out by it to 

partner with the Council on the development. This left MCC Strategic Development 

Dept., liable for the balance of the bank loan taken up by BVA and the City Council’s 

leisure services without the promised income from the lease of the stadium. 

  

3 Primary reasons cited (by MCC) for the failed venture are low spectator demand (need) 

and BVA’s over-optimistic business plan forecasting which did not even come close to 

being realised. The Club failed commercially despite it being in a new stadium and the 

Club itself maintaining a regular and a successful (in terms of trophies) presence in 

speedway. 

  

3 The MCC consultee stated that Club itself has only survived because the Council has not 

called in its debt. 

  

3 BVA reformed as BVA2018 and MCC issued a lease Club to use the stadium on 34 days per  

annum for all its junior, senior and European matches. The Council’s leisure operator GLL now  

operates the whole venue all year round and there is a second leaseholder UCFB 

  

3 Under this arrangement, BVA 2018 has a peppercorn lease and pays a service charge 

for its periods of use (on the 34 days). 

  

3 This arrangement was established based on a two-year lease in 2018 and a two-year extension  

was agreed in 2020 (extended to 2023 because of Covid-19). 

  

3 MCC will be asking BVA2018 to pay an improved (albeit still essentially peppercorn) rent on its  

lease as of financial year 2024-25. 

  

2.13 The overall analysis of the City’s Facilities Contracts Manager – is that speedway is embedded  

in Manchester’s DNA but is a dwindling spectator sport and requires a completely new  

strategy if it is to successfully engage with local people and the club are proactively driving  

this strategy  an eventuality about which she was not confident. The stadium requires additional  
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users and bookings to be sustainable, as speedway does not generate sufficient income to  

standalone and continue. MCC have issued a lease to UCFB to mitigate  

the current subsidised required, by having multiple users of the building along with  

Speedway/GLL generating additional bookings will deliver a sustainable business model  

  

2.14 The Contracts Manager reported that the spectator base is largely male, white, ‘working class’ 

and over 50 and the impression gained is that other than a few diehard followers, attendance is 

an occasional rather than a regular feature of fan’s habits. The secondary spend reflects the 

demographic and is more ‘pie and pint’ than a more profitable catering/event offer which needs to be  

built on and is reflected in the new strategy 
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